
Nottingham Zoning Board of Adjustment Meeting 

7-20-21 

Official Minutes as of 8-17-21 

 

1 
 

Call to Order 1 

Members Present: Chair Bonnie Winona MacKinnon, Vice Chair Teresa Bascom, Romeo 2 

Danais, Raelene Shippee-Rice, Terry Bonser, Alternate Kevin Bassett 3 

Absent:  4 

Others: Lorraine Petrini, Ian MacKinnon, Mitch Hale, Tami DeFrancesco, James George 5 

Chair opened the meeting at 7:13pm.  6 

There was discussion about the order of the meeting. Ms. MacKinnon said there should be a 7 

public hearing first. Mrs. Bascom said that the election of officers should be first. She said if the 8 

meeting runs late, it could be pushed off. Ms. MacKinnon referred to the by-laws that stated the 9 

Public Hearing would be first.   10 

There is a public hearing that is continued from last month. Ms. MacKinnon read the rules of the 11 

public hearing.  12 

Public Hearing 13 

I. Continued Public Hearing - Case 21-009-VA  14 

Application from Mitch & Carol Hale, represented by Barry Gier, Jones & Beach Engineers, 15 

Inc.  requesting a Variance from Article 3 Section C (3) of the Nottingham Zoning Ordinance to 16 

permit construction of a septic system within 20' of property line. Proposed septic system to be 17 

located 6' from north property line. The property is located at 59 Shore Drive in Nottingham, NH 18 

and is identified as Tax Map 68 Lots 37.   19 

Ian MacKinnon of Jones & Beach Engineers presented the case for the applicants on behalf of 20 

Barry Gier and distributed revised septic plans to the board.  Ms. MacKinnon said the board went 21 

on a site walk on Saturday July 17th.  22 

The engineers located the well on Lot 36 which was under a septic cover and believed to be pre-23 

1989. The septic field originally was 33 feet away. The new system layout is a curved system for 24 

Lot 37. The separation of to 42 feet from Lot 36 and 43 feet from Lot 38. The new curved system 25 

is 6.5 feet away instead of the 20 feet that is customary in Nottingham and they are looking for a 26 

variance for the septic system for Lot 37 because of this.  27 

Mr. Bonser asked for clarification if it was on the north line. Mr. MacKinnon said it is on the 28 

west property line. Mr. Bonser said this looks good. Mr. Bassett said it was a good option. He 29 

said this would be an approved septic system and there is not one there currently so this helps the 30 

property’s value. Mr. Bonser said they may have to take a few trees out. Mr. Hale said they 31 

would have to take out a few trees: a pine tree and a few saplings.  32 

There is no public to speak about this case. Ms. MacKinnon closed the public hearing.  33 

Ms. MacKinnon said this looks like the best design.  34 



Nottingham Zoning Board of Adjustment Meeting 

7-20-21 

Official Minutes as of 8-17-21 

 

2 
 

Mrs. Bascom made a motion to approve the application from Mitch & Carol Hale with the 35 

correction that it is the west line instead of the north. Mr. Bonser seconded. Unanimously 36 

approved by a vote of 5-0. 37 

Ms. MacKinnon said there is 30 days to appeal.  38 

II. Re-hearing request - Case 21-008-VA  39 

Prior approval of the Board appealed by four residents. Variance was granted to Tami 40 

Defrancesco and James George from Article II, Section C of the Zoning Ordinance to permit 41 

watercross events with  incidental camping (i.e. “commercial use”) three weekends per year. The 42 

property is located at 214 Raymond Road in Nottingham, NH and is identified as Tax Map 69 43 

Lots 8 & 10.   44 

Ms. MacKinnon said this is not a public hearing. There is no one here to present the case 45 

verbally. Ms. MacKinnon read the appeal process. She also read part of the 17 page document 46 

that was submitted. The document will be attached to the minutes.  (see end) 47 

Ms. MacKinnon said the town attorney had suggested having an appeal for this case and the 48 

board decided not to. The zoning board meeting minutes were not written as there was no 49 

secretary. Mrs. Bascom said there was a draft for the minutes; Ms. MacKinnon said they were 50 

not. Mrs. Bascom said there were told there was at least an audio from the meeting that could be 51 

submitted to the court. Ms. MacKinnon read the law and it said that person can appeal the 52 

hearing if the meeting minutes were not written. Mr. Bassett said he believes the audio is 53 

sufficient for minutes. There wasn’t enough time to re-notice the meeting. Ms. MacKinnon 54 

thought there would have been. Mrs. Bascom said there was a 2 week notice from the governor 55 

stating people could begin to have in person meetings again and it would begin on that date that 56 

the meeting was occurring. however people were prepared for a zoom meeting. There would 57 

have been 90 people in a building. There was not a room large enough to house that many people 58 

that also had recording capabilities.  59 

Ms. MacKinnon said the town  chose to not re-notice the meeting.  60 

Mr. Bassett said the bulk of this appeal was about the audio of the watercross event. The people 61 

who were asking for the appeal are half a mile away, on the Pawtuckaway River, Dolloff Dam 62 

immediate next-door abutters. He said the trees are a natural barrier; he said the area is almost 63 

completely wooded. He asked if there should be a sound measurement at the watercross location; 64 

perhaps that is a proposal. He stated if you are on a certain part of the lake, you would hear this 65 

more as there are no trees that would serve as barriers.  66 

Mrs. Bascom stated that at that hearing the applicants offered to run a race and have sound tests 67 

done.   It was offered for the watercross event organizers to do that but the board would have to 68 

allow them to race. If the race can’t be approved, there can be no sound test.  69 

Mr. Bassett asked if they are allowed to have one race. Mrs. Bascom said the BOS approved for 70 

them to have a race last year but it was stated that they would have go through Planning Board to 71 



Nottingham Zoning Board of Adjustment Meeting 

7-20-21 

Official Minutes as of 8-17-21 

 

3 
 

get a site plan for the change of use for future events and that is why the Zoning Board is 72 

involved. Mr. Bassett asked if the board can allow them to a race to have the test. Ms. 73 

MacKinnon said the variance will go with the land forever. She said they don’t have the 74 

authority to grant something like that as the Planning Board needs to be involved with the 75 

decision. Mr. Bassett asked if the BOS could allow them to do it again. Ms. MacKinnon said she 76 

believes the BOS should not have allowed them to do this last year. She said no measurement of 77 

sound was done last year. There was an enormous amount of discussion about sound in the first 78 

hearing, Ms. MacKinnon said. Mr. Bonser said there was a continuance for the 2nd part. Ms. 79 

MacKinnon said they had a hearing so their attorney could bring the abutters’ rebuttal. Mr. 80 

Bonser said when the Zoning Board granted the variance, the Planning Board would look further 81 

into it. Ms. Shippee-Rice said there is also the sound of the number of people that are attending 82 

the events. This increases the level of sound as well in addition to the machinery. Ms. 83 

MacKinnon said there are also loudspeakers.  84 

Mr. Bassett spoke about how sound travels. Mrs. Bascom said you can’t control sounds all the 85 

time. She said some concerts happen on mountains. She said this event shouldn’t be negated 86 

because it hasn’t happened before.  87 

Mr. Danais said they are debating sound instead of whether there should be another hearing. 88 

When the hearing on June 15 was held, it was duly noted it would be a zoom meeting. The 89 

governor allowed in person meetings at that time but you can’t go retroactive to the notice that 90 

was given. There was 70 people online. The vote was held and it passed by a vote of 3-2. It has 91 

been 35 days since the hearing. He asked if anyone has come forward to object. Ms. MacKinnon 92 

said 4 property owners have objected; the document has been prepared by their lawyer.  93 

Mrs. Bascom said she apologized; they should not have discussed the sound. Mr. Danais said to 94 

call the vote. Ms. Shippee-Rice said there were other issues to discuss on the document. Mrs. 95 

Bascom said she does not believe this event will lessen the property value of the homes close to 96 

the event. Mr. Danais again requested calling the vote. Ms. MacKinnon said that the 5 criteria 97 

may not have been met for a hearing and that is what they are discussing. Ms. MacKinnon said 98 

that if the condos next door to this event were to be sold, she would have to disclose that there 99 

were races held. Mr. Bonser said that the racetrack is close to his house and his property 100 

evaluation has not gone down. Mrs. Bascom stated that the issue is did we really think we missed 101 

something in the hearing and/or is there new information that will change their mind? Ms. 102 

Shippee-Rice said it may be in the document and they have to discuss it. Mrs. Bascom said the 103 

information is in the document. Ms. MacKinnon said that different people could testify and the 104 

old case would be wiped out. Ms. Shippee-Rice said there is a second opinion of property 105 

assessments and it could be a basis for second review. Ms. MacKinnon said the fish and game 106 

dept. do not approve events. Mr. Danais asked if they are trying this case now. He said to hold a 107 

vote.  108 

Mr. Danais made a motion to have a re-hearing for Case 21-008-VA. Ms. MacKinnon 109 

seconded. The vote was 3-2 in favor with Mr. Bonser and Mrs. Bascom nay.  110 



Nottingham Zoning Board of Adjustment Meeting 

7-20-21 

Official Minutes as of 8-17-21 

 

4 
 

The next meeting will be August 17.  111 

Election of Officers 112 

Mrs. Bascom made a motion for Mr. Bonser to be Chair. Mr. Danais seconded. It was 113 

approved by a vote of 3-1-1 with Ms. Shippee-Rice nay, Ms. MacKinnon abstaining. 114 

Mr. Bonser made a motion for Mrs. Bascom to be Vice chair. Mr. Danais seconded. It was 115 

approved by a vote of 4-0-1 with Ms. MacKinnon abstaining.  116 

Approve Minutes 117 

Mr. Bonser made a motion to approve the minutes from 7-17-21 as written. Mr. Bassett 118 

seconded. Unanimously approved by a vote of 5-0 with Alternate Mr. Bassett voting instead 119 

of Ms. Shippee-Rice. 120 

Mr. Bonser made a motion to approve the minutes from 6-22-21 as written. Ms. Shippee-121 

Rice seconded. It was approved by a vote of 4-0-0 with Mrs. Bascom abstaining.  122 

Mr. Bonser made a motion to approve the minutes from 6-15-21 as written. Mrs. Bascom 123 

seconded. Unanimously approved by a vote of 5-0. 124 

Mrs. Bascom made a motion to approve the public and non-public minutes from 5-18-21 as 125 

written. Mr. Bonser seconded. Unanimously approved by a vote of 4-1 with Mr. Danais 126 

abstaining. 127 

Adjourn 128 

Mr. Danais made a motion to adjourn at 8:12pm. Mrs. Bascom seconded.  Unanimously 129 

approved by a vote of 5-0.  130 

 131 

 132 

 133 






































	ZBA Min 20210720
	#ATTACH TO 7.20 MINUTES Case #21-009-VA Appeal for Rehearing

